
Leckroy – Father Coll MacDonald 

An extract from THE NEW ZEALAND TABLET of 20th June 1890 regarding Father Coll - 

 

This memorial, one of many, neatly sums-up a remarkable 

Highland Priest who made an impression in the Western 

Highlands during difficult social upheavals in the 19th century. 

This is the only known photo of Father Coll, born at Leckroy in 

1812 and died at Fort Augustus in 1889. The image is from an 

article by Solicitor Alexander Campbell, a great nephew of Father 

Colls. It was published in The Scots Magazine of June 1959 

The House Site at Leckroy where Fr Coll and family lived is still 

pointed out today, although their remains only a smattering of 

overgrown stones next to the river Roy. 

 

The house site in Leckroy where Fr Coll was born – On the left about 1990, the right 2022 

          

 



Leckroy – LEACHD ROY…1831 map of the Duke of Gordons Lordship of Lochaber 
 

 

 

This map was prepared in 1831 for the sale of the Dukes Lochaber Estate - Leckroy is situated 

at the end of Glen Roy as you take the track towards the confluence of the Rivers Roy and 

Spey and ultimately to Garvamore and Badenoch 

It is bordered to the North by Lovat’s Abertarf property, to the West by the farm of Glenturret 

(GLEN TURRAD) and the south by the River Roy and across it the farm of Annat (Anad). 

The dwellings of Laechd ruaigh and Anad are shown ringed in red. 

Leckroy – Sketch of Lochaber in 1803 showing the Dukes farms by Mr Klinksdale. 

 

A clear indication of the location of Leckroy relative to Glenturat and Anit at the head of 

Glen Roy. The dotted lines indicate all good & pafsable roads on the map, to the right the 

road to Garvamore, from the bottom left through Glen Roy and upwards past Glenturat into 

Glen Gloy  



Plan of Leek Roy and Anit 1767. 

 

Sketches were made in 1767 of the Dukes Lordship of Lochaber townships, with brief notes 

on its location and the extent of arable land as well as hill pasture and Shielings. 

An interesting note on the map states – The Corn Lands nearest to Roy Water on Both 

Tacks is good the upper fields are shallow and gravelly.  

Leckroy Inhabitants -  

1778 - List of the men residing on the Duke of Gordons Property in the Lordship of Lochaber 

comprehending all the Able Bodied Men between the Ages of Sixteen and Sixty Years.  ~ 

Leckroy consisting of One Merk Land and a half ~ 

Donald Cameron   
Martin Cameron         Joint Tacksmen 
Duncan Cameron  
John Cameron Servant to Duncan Cameron 
 

Camerons were the dominant occupiers of Leckroy and neighbouring Annat for the next 30 

plus years with Duncan Cameron recorded as Tacksman in 1782 & 1783. The infamous Donald 

Og Cameron was Tacksman of half the lands of Leckroy in 1785. William Cameron in Leckroy 

was sequestrated in 1809, he had been recorded there in 1801. 

At the Western edges of the Lordship of Lochaber in 1809, Donald MacDonald was principal 

Tacksman of the Farm & Public House Highbridge, his subtenant Angus MacDonald was a 

younger brother of Donald, living at Highbridge with his aged mother. They were Cranachan 

MacDonalds, a sept of the MacDonalds/MacDonells of Keppoch, who were later described as 

Donald and Angus Drochaid (bridge), probably so described because of their time at 

Highbridge. Donald Drochaid had built an Inn at Gordonsburgh in 1805 and was living there 



in 1809. He is remembered as the grandfather of the first Australian born Saint, Mary 

MacKillop. Later papers in 1809 record that both Donald and Angus were to be removed from 

Highbridge. 

Angus probably moved to Leckroy around this time and it was in Leckroy that his son Coll 

MacDonald was born in 1814. His mother was Mary MacDonald, known as Mairi Bheag an 

Doctair, the daughter of Dr Donald MacDonald, 5th of Cranachan. Angus and Mary had 5 

children - Coll, Donald, Catherine, Mary and the youngest Clementina. The family moved 

across the hills to the Inn at Garvamore when Angus took over as Innkeeper.  

Coll’s life, both before and after he was ordained, is shown in more detail with the excerpts 

from – 

1 – His obituary in the 1890 edition of the Catholic Directory 

2 – An article referred to earlier in the Scots Magazine of 1959 

3 – The braes of Lochaber – Community Newspaper Vol, 13 Issues 3&4 2017 – By “An Bodach” 

It is noted that Father Coll decided to become a Priest after the untimely death of a 

favourite/youngest sister Clementina. She married Allan MacDonald merchant Unachan on 

16th Feb 1838 as recorded in the Kilmonivaig Parish Register – 

 

Their son Angus was born on the 16th September 1839 as recorded in the Bunroy Catholic 

Register – 

 

Unachan/Bridge of Aonachan – now Spean Bridge. It seems that Clementina died after the 

birth of her son Angus, by 1841 Allan was on his own in Unachan sharing with Peter 

MacFarlane and his family. It was thought by Lochaber historians that Clementina may have 

died with her child during the birth, but more recent findings has shown the son was with his 

grandparents in Clianaig in 1841 and there are many descendants in the UK and elsewhere. 

Coll entered Blairs to commence his studies on the 7th September 1841, Rome and the College 

of Propaganda on 29th July 1845 and finally ordained in Rome on the 30th March 1850. 



Referring once more to “THE NEW ZEALAND TABLET of 20th June 1890 regarding Father 

Coll” –  

 

John Henry Newman (1801 – 1890) was a Roman Catholic theologian, philosopher and 

cardinal who converted to Roman Catholicism from Anglicanism in Oct 1845. In early life, he 

was a major figure in the Oxford Movement to bring the Church of England back to its roots. 

Eventually his studies in history persuaded him to become a Roman Catholic priest, and he 

has now become a Saint, having been canonised on 13 October 2019. In 1991. 

In 1854 Fr Coll was transferred to Fort William and while there he built St Mary’s as shown 

below from a historical account of St Mary’s Fort William 15th August 1923. – “Then from July, 

1854, to 1871 we have Fr. Coll MacDonald, by whom the present church was built. In 1871 

there was an exchange of parishes between Fr, Coll and Fr. John MacDonald, Fort Augustus” 

 

A fine memorial. 

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Oxford_Movement
https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Church_of_England


During Father Coll’s time in Fort Augustus he saw the establishment of the Benedictine 

Monastery at the old site of the 18th century Fort. His own church and house was later a 

Convent and now a private home. His elderly Mother stayed with him in Fort Augustus, she 

died at the Chapel House there on the 19th January 1875, aged 91. She is buried in Cille Choirill, 

the location can be seen at the end of the Catholic Directory obituary for Fr Coll below.  

The edition of the “Scottish Highlander” on the 5th July 1888 carries a report on the retirement 

of Fr Coll – 

Fort Augustus – Presentation to THE Rev Father Coll MacDonald. – On Thursday, the 21st ult, 

the Rev Coll MacDonald, C.C. was, on the occasion of his retirement from the active 

superintendence of his charge, presented with a purse of over 40 sovereigns, subscribed by 

all classes in the district, as an expression of their esteem and good-will. The presentation 

took place in the Monastery, and the large company present was presided over by the Prior.  

Only 17 months later the Scottish Highlander of the 5th December 1889 was reporting the 

death of Father Coll – 

 

The Inverness Courier of May 13th 1898 reported progress on “The Father Coll Memorial”, a 

committee having been appointed by the RC communities of Lochaber and Fort Augustus, for 

the purpose of erecting a monument to the memory of the late Father Coll. 

“As Father Coll was highly esteemed by all denominations throughout the 

Western Highlands” 

Is this the monument that sits over his lasting resting place in Cille Choirill? 



 
 
 
 
 



 
 



From Scots Magazine - 1959 

 



 



 



 



From The Braes of Lochaber - 2017 

 

 



 
 

 

 


